
Advisory Board Project PATH  
Agenda 

November 30, 2023 
 

 

A. Roll Call-  

B. Approval of Minutes-  

October Meeting Minutes - See Attached 

C. Project PATH Updates- Jesalyn  

D. Site Updates- Dave 

E. HB5019 - Esme 

F. Public Comment- 
 
G. Open Discussion- 
 
H. Adjournment- 

 
 

 
 



 
 

Advisory Board Project PATH Minutes 
October 26, 2023 

 
A. Meeting called to order-  

City Manager Stockdale called the meeting to order at 9:06am.  
 

Roll Call- Present - City Managers; Stockdale, Smith, and Slaght, Burgener and Commissioner 
Dorran. 
Absent – 
Others: Stepping Stones Alliance Members; Jesalyn Cole, Cathy Lloyd, Chuck Barnes and City of 
Umatilla, Esmeralda Perches and Marisela Morales. 

 
B. Approval of Minutes-  

City Manager Stockdale requested motion to approve minutes for September 2023. 
Commissioner Dorran moved for approval of minutes. Motioned seconded by City Manager 
Slaght. Motion carried.  

 
C. Quarterly Report -  

City Manager Stockdale requested motion to quarterly report for 1st quarter FY 23-24. City 
Manager Smith moved for approval of report. Motioned seconded by City Manager Burgener. 
Motion carried.  

 
D. Project PATH Updates -  

Jesalyn Cole, briefed the group echoing same information provided on quarterly report, also 
presented and provided to the group new brochures for the sleep center. Also inviting all 
present to share information for volunteers needed as winter season approaches.  

 
E. Site Updates-  

City Manager Stockdale updated group- Footing inspections, well, septic are all complete. Fence 
is up and looks nice.   
 

F. Public Comment – 
 None 
I. Open Table Discussion –  

December 7th ribbon cutting tentative date from 3-6pm. Cathy notified group Marlette will be 
constructing two ADA ISU’s down the line. Jesalyn confirmed who will be setting up utilities, 
porta potties and camera etc. Dave notified her the City will be in charge of that. Stepping 
Stones will take the lead on signage design on building and highway 395. Chuck asked where 
mail will be delivered, Esmeralda will follow up.  

Meeting adjourned at 10:09am. 



  Agreement No. 8093 
   

BOS – (City of Umatilla) 1 ADW 

Intergovernmental Grant Agreement 

 

Balance of State (BOS) 

 

State of Emergency Due to Homelessness 

 

This Agreement (this “Agreement”) is by and between the State of Oregon (“State”), acting by 

and through its Housing and Community Services Department (“Agency”), and City of 

Umatilla, an Oregon local government entity (“Recipient”), each individually a “Party”, and 

collectively the “Parties”.  

1. Effective Date and Duration 

This Agreement shall become effective upon full execution by the Parties and, if required, 

approval by the Oregon Department of Justice, and shall expire on June 30, 2025, unless 

extended or terminated under the provisions identified within this Agreement. Expiration or 

termination of this Agreement will not prejudice Agency’s right to exercise remedies under 

this Agreement with respect to any breach that has occurred prior to expiration or 

termination.  

 

2. Background and Definitions 

 

The Parties acknowledge the following background related to this Agreement: 

 

On January 10, 2023, Governor Kotek declared a homelessness state of emergency in 

response to the 80% rise in unsheltered homelessness in emergency areas since 2017. The 

Governor directed state agencies to prioritize efforts to reduce homelessness and established 

a statewide housing production advisory council. In addition to these efforts on the part of the 

state government, Agency was awarded funding through House Bill (HB) 5019 during the 

2023 Session of the Oregon Legislature to increase shelter capacity and connections to 

shelter, support rapid rehousing initiatives, provide capacity support for culturally responsive 

organizations, and provide sanitation services, for communities within the OR-505 - Oregon 

Balance of State Continuum of Care and for the administration of support relating to these 

objectives. Agency will support such communities in deploying these funds, including but 

not limited to support pursuant to this Agreement, in a coordinated effort to accomplish the 

following objectives:          

A. Increase shelter capacity, quality, and utilization in the region covered by the OR-505 

Oregon Balance of State Rural Continuum of Care by 100 beds; and  

 

B. Rehouse at least 450 households experiencing unsheltered homelessness in Balance of 

State areas.  

 

     All references to “days” in this Agreement shall mean calendar days. 

  

DocuSign Envelope ID: F1AC125A-1910-42FF-87F6-485A9AEB5D11



  Agreement No. 8093 
   

BOS – (City of Umatilla) 2 ADW 

 

 

3. Consideration 

Agency agrees to pay Recipient, from available and authorized funds, the amount of actual 

expenses incurred by Recipient in performing the grant activities referenced below in Section 

4 of this Agreement (“Authorized Expenses”), but not to exceed $ 627,200.00 (the “Grant 

Funds”), as follows: 

 

3.1 Following expenditures by Recipient and submission to Agency of a report detailing such 

expenditures in such form as is satisfactory to or required by Agency, Agency will 

reimburse Recipient for Authorized Expenses up to the amount of $ 627,200.00, following 

receipt of requests by Recipient for such reimbursement. Authorized Expenses will only be 

reimbursed if incurred during the period from July 1, 2023 until June 30, 2025 (the 

“Performance Period”). Each such reimbursement request will be made following, and in 

accordance with, a Notice of Allocation (“NOA”) issued by Agency to Recipient, including 

but not limited to any allocation of Grant Funds in the applicable NOA to specific expense 

categories. Recipient will submit requests for reimbursement under this Section 3.1 at least 

quarterly and in such form and manner as is satisfactory to or required by Agency. Agency 

and Recipient may by mutual agreement modify or terminate a NOA at any time. In the 

event of a conflict between any NOA and the terms of this Agreement, including but not 

limited to the not-to-exceed amount set forth under this Agreement, the terms of this 

Agreement will prevail.  

 

4. Grant Activities 

Recipient will use Grant Funds to conduct the grant activities set forth in Exhibit A (the 

“Grant Activities”), which is attached to and incorporated into this Agreement. Recipient’s 

receipt of Grant Funds is conditioned on Recipient’s compliance with Exhibit A, including 

but not limited to any performance measures set forth in Exhibit A. Recipient will achieve 

the goals set forth in Exhibit B and agrees that such goals are requirements under this 

Agreement.  

 

5. Authorized Representatives 

 

5.1 Agency’s Authorized Representative is: 

Liz Hearn 
725 Summer Street NE, Suite B 
Salem, OR  97301 
liz.hearn@hcs.oregon.gov 

5.2 Recipient’s Authorized Representative is: 

 

Melissa Ince 

P.O. Box 130 

Umatilla, OR 97882 

melissa@umatilla-city.org 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F1AC125A-1910-42FF-87F6-485A9AEB5D11

mailto:melissa@umatilla-city.org


  Agreement No. 8093 
   

BOS – (City of Umatilla) 3 ADW 

5.3 A Party may designate a new Authorized Representative by written notice to the other 

Party. 

 

6. Online Systems 

 

6.1  Recipient and its subrecipients must enter all appropriate and necessary data into OPUS 

(a web-based application developed by Agency), Homeless Management Information 

System (HMIS), Procorem or any other Agency-approved system designated by Agency 

(collectively, the “Sites”) at the time of client intake, if applicable, or at such other times 

required by Agency. Exceptions are only allowed with prior written approval by Agency. 

 

6.2  As a condition of use of the Sites, Recipient and its subrecipients (collectively, “User”) 

agree to all terms and conditions contained in this Agreement, notices on the Sites, or other 

directives by Agency regarding use of the Sites. User agrees to not use the Sites for any 

unlawful purpose. Agency reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to update or revise the 

terms and conditions for use of the Sites. 

 

6.3  Use of the Sites for additional reported “local” program data is at the Recipient’s and 

subrecipients’ own risk. Agency will not modify or otherwise create any screen, report, or 

tool in the Sites to meet needs related to this local data. 

 

6.4  Recipient hereby grants and will require and cause any subrecipient to grant Agency the 

right to reproduce, use, display, adapt, modify, distribute, and promote the content on the 

Sites in any form and disclose, to the extent permitted by law, any or all of the information 

or data furnished to or received by Agency directly or indirectly resulting from this 

Agreement.  Recipient also shall use and shall require and cause its subrecipients to use 

appropriate client release forms and privacy policy forms in connection with obtaining and 

transmitting client data. 
 

6.5  Recipient understands and agrees, and shall require its subrecipients to agree, that all 

materials, information, software, products, and services included in or available through the 

Sites (the “Content”) are provided “as is” and “as available” for use. The Content is 

provided without warranties of any kind, either express or implied, including, but not 

limited to, implied warranties of merchantability, fitness for a particular purpose, or non-

infringement.  Agency does not represent or warrant that: (1) the Content is accurate, 

reliable, or correct; (2) the Sites will be available at any particular time or location; (3) any 

defects or errors in the Content will be corrected; or (4) the Content is free of viruses or 

other harmful components. Use of the Sites is solely at the User’s risk. User hereby accepts 

the risk of its use of the Sites, and of the use of the Sites by its subrecipients. 

 

6.6   Recipient agrees that under no circumstances will Agency be liable for any direct, 

indirect, punitive, incidental, special, or consequential damages that result from the use of, 

or inability to use the Sites. This limitation applies whether the alleged liability is based on 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F1AC125A-1910-42FF-87F6-485A9AEB5D11



  Agreement No. 8093 
   

BOS – (City of Umatilla) 4 ADW 

contract, tort, negligence, strict liability, or any other basis, even if Agency has been 

informed of the possibility of such damage. 

 

7. Headings 

The headings or captions in this Agreement are for convenience only and in no way define, 

limit, or describe the intent of any provisions of this Agreement. 

 

8. Amendments 

The terms of this Agreement shall not be modified, supplemented, or amended in any manner 

whatsoever, except in writing by Agency. 

 

9. Nonexclusive Remedies Related to Funding 

Agency may withhold any and all undisbursed Grant Funds from Recipient if Agency, in its 

sole discretion, determines that Recipient has failed to timely satisfy any material obligation 

arising under this Agreement or otherwise. Recipient’s material obligations include, but are 

not limited to, providing complete, accurate and timely reports satisfactory to Agency about 

Recipient’s performance under this Agreement as well as timely satisfying all Agreement 

obligations relating to any Grant Funds.   

 

If Grant Funds are not obligated for reimbursement by Recipient in a timely manner as 

determined by Agency in its sole discretion, Agency may reduce Recipient’s funding as it 

determines to be appropriate in its sole discretion and redistribute such Grant Funds to other 

parties or retain such Grant Funds for other use. This remedy is in addition to any other 

remedies available to Agency under this Agreement or otherwise. 

 

10. Independent Contractor Relationship 

The Parties agree and acknowledge that their relationship is that of independent contracting 

parties and that neither Recipient, nor any of its directors, officers, employees or agents, is an 

officer, employee, or agent of the State of Oregon as those terms are used in ORS 30.265 or 

otherwise.  

 

11. Access to Records 

Recipient shall maintain all financial records relating to this Agreement in accordance with 

generally accepted accounting principles. In addition, Recipient shall maintain any other 

records, books, documents, papers, plans, records of shipments and payments and writings of 

Recipient, whether in paper, electronic or other form, that are pertinent to this Agreement in 

such a manner as to clearly document Recipient’s performance. All financial records, other 

records, books, documents, papers, plans, records of shipments and payments and writings of 

Recipient, whether in paper, electronic or other form, that are pertinent to this Agreement, are 

collectively referred to as “Records.” Recipient acknowledges and agrees that Agency and 

the Oregon Secretary of State's Office and their duly authorized representatives will have 

access to all Records to perform examinations and audits and make excerpts and transcripts. 

Recipient shall retain and keep accessible all Records for a minimum of six (6) years, or such 

longer period as may be required by applicable law, following termination of this Agreement, 

or until the conclusion of any audit, controversy or litigation arising out of or related to this 

Agreement, whichever date is later. Subject to the foregoing minimum records retention 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F1AC125A-1910-42FF-87F6-485A9AEB5D11



  Agreement No. 8093 
   

BOS – (City of Umatilla) 5 ADW 

requirement, Recipient shall maintain Records in accordance with the records retention 

schedules set forth in OAR Chapter 166. 

 

12. Compliance with Law 

In connection with their activities under this Agreement, the Parties shall comply with all 

applicable law. 

 

13. Contribution  

 

13.1 If any third party makes any claim or brings any action, suit or proceeding alleging a tort 

as now or hereafter defined in ORS 30.260 (a “Third Party Claim”) against a Party (the 

“Notified Party”) with respect to which the other Party (the “Other Party”) may have 

liability, the Notified Party shall promptly notify the Other Party in writing of the Third Party 

Claim and deliver to the Other Party, along with the written notice, a copy of the claim, 

process and all legal pleadings with respect to the Third Party Claim that have been received 

by the Notified Party. Each Party is entitled to participate in the defense of a Third-Party 

Claim, and to defend a Third-Party Claim with counsel of its own choosing. Receipt by the 

Other Party of the notice and copies required in this Section and a meaningful opportunity for 

the Other Party to participate in the investigation, defense and settlement of the Third-Party 

Claim with counsel of its own choosing are conditions precedent to the Other Party’s 

contribution obligation under this Section 13 with respect to the Third-Party Claim.   

 

13.2 With respect to a Third Party Claim for which Agency is jointly liable with Recipient (or 

would be if joined in the Third Party Claim ), Agency shall contribute to the amount of 

expenses (including attorneys’ fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement 

actually and reasonably incurred and paid or payable by Recipient in such proportion as is 

appropriate to reflect the relative fault of Agency on the one hand and of Recipient on the 

other hand in connection with the events that resulted in such expenses, judgments, fines or 

settlement amounts, as well as any other relevant equitable considerations. The relative fault 

of Agency on the one hand and of Recipient on the other hand shall be determined by 

reference to, among other things, the Parties’ relative intent, knowledge, access to 

information and opportunity to correct or prevent the circumstances resulting in such 

expenses, judgments, fines, or settlement amounts. Agency’s contribution amount in any 

instance is capped to the same extent it would have been capped under Oregon law if the 

State had sole liability in the proceeding.  

 

13.3 With respect to a Third Party Claim for which Recipient is jointly liable with Agency (or 

would be if joined in the Third Party Claim), Recipient shall contribute to the amount of 

expenses (including attorneys’ fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement 

actually and reasonably incurred and paid or payable by Agency in such proportion as is 

appropriate to reflect the relative fault of Recipient on the one hand and of Agency on the 

other hand in connection with the events that resulted in such expenses, judgments, fines or 

settlement amounts, as well as any other relevant equitable considerations. The relative fault 

of Recipient on the one hand and of Agency on the other hand shall be determined by 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F1AC125A-1910-42FF-87F6-485A9AEB5D11



  Agreement No. 8093 
   

BOS – (City of Umatilla) 6 ADW 

reference to, among other things, the Parties’ relative intent, knowledge, access to 

information and opportunity to correct or prevent the circumstances resulting in such 

expenses, judgments, fines, or settlement amounts. Recipient’s contribution amount in any 

instance is capped to the same extent it would have been capped under Oregon law if it had 

sole liability in the proceeding. 

 

13.4 Recipient shall take all reasonable steps to cause its contractor(s) that are not units of 

local government as defined in ORS 190.003, if any, to indemnify, defend. Save and hold 

harmless the State of Oregon and its officers, employees and agents (“Indemnitee”) from and 

against any and all claims, actions, liabilities, damages, losses, or expenses (including 

attorneys’ fees) arising from a tort (as now or hereafter defined in ORS 30.260) caused, or 

alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by the negligent or willful acts or omissions of 

Recipient’s contractor or any of the officers, agents, employees or subcontractors of the 

contractor (“Claims”). It is the specific intention of the parties that the Indemnitee shall, in all 

instances, except for Claims arising solely from the negligent or willful acts or omissions of 

the Indemnitee, be indemnified by the contractor from and against any and all Claims. Any 

defense obligations to Indemnitee are subject to compliance with applicable provisions of 

ORS chapter 180.  

 

14. Recipient Default 

Recipient will be in default under this Agreement upon the occurrence of any of the 

following events: 

 

14.1 Recipient fails to perform, observe, or discharge any of its covenants, agreements, or 

obligations under this Agreement, including but not limited to failure to perform Grant 

Activities or satisfy performance measures as set forth in Exhibit A and such failure is not 

remedied within thirty (30) days following notice from Agency to Recipient specifying such 

failure; or 

 

14.2 Any representation, warranty or statement made by Recipient in this Agreement or in any 

documents or reports submitted by Recipient in connection with this Agreement, concerning 

the expenditure of Grant Funds or Recipient’s performance of any of its obligations under 

this Agreement, is untrue in any material respect when made; or 

 

14.3 Recipient fails to incur expenses, or to satisfy performance measures, at a rate or in a 

manner that would result in complete expenditure of the Grant Funds in accordance with this 

Agreement, or successful completion of all performance measures under this Agreement, on 

or before June 30, 2025, as determined by Agency in its sole discretion. 

 

15. Agency Default 

Agency will be in default under this Agreement if Agency fails to perform, observe, or 

discharge any of its covenants, agreements, or obligations under this Agreement. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F1AC125A-1910-42FF-87F6-485A9AEB5D11



  Agreement No. 8093 
   

BOS – (City of Umatilla) 7 ADW 

 

16. Remedies 

 

16.1 In the event Recipient is in default under Section 14, Agency may, at its option, pursue 

any or all of the remedies available to it under this Agreement and at law or in equity, 

including, but not limited to: (a) termination of this Agreement under Section 18, (b) 

reducing, withholding or recovering payment of Grant Funds for activities that Recipient has 

failed to perform in accordance with this Agreement, (c) initiation of an action or proceeding 

for damages, specific performance, or declaratory or injunctive relief, or (d) exercise of its 

right of recovery of overpayments under Section 17 of this Agreement or setoff, or both. 

 

All of the above remedies in this Section 16.1 are cumulative to the extent the remedies are 

not inconsistent, and Agency may pursue any remedy or remedies singly, collectively, 

successively, or in any order whatsoever. 

 

16.2 Prior to any termination of this Agreement by Agency pursuant to Section 18.2.3, Agency 

will provide Recipient with a written notice of such default and will include in such notice an 

offer to meet with the senior manager of Recipient who has primary responsibility for 

oversight of the Grant Activities to provide Recipient an opportunity to explain the reasons 

for the default and to present a proposal for curing the default within a time period that is 

acceptable to Agency. Recipient shall have 5 days to accept such offer.  If Recipient does not 

accept such offer within such 5-day period, Agency may terminate this Agreement upon 10 

days’ written notice as provided in Section 18.2.3 or exercise any other remedies available to 

Agency under this Agreement unless Recipient has fully cured such default prior to the 

expiration of such 10-day notice period.  If Recipient accepts such offer, the meeting must be 

held within 14 days of such acceptance or at such other time as agreed by Agency. Following 

the meeting, Agency shall make a determination, in its reasonable discretion, of whether to 

accept Recipient’s proposal, with such modifications as are mutually acceptable to the 

Parties, and shall give written notice of such determination to Recipient. If Agency’s written 

notice states that Agency does not agree to such proposal, or if Agency accepts such proposal 

but Recipient does not satisfy the terms of the proposal, Agency may terminate this 

Agreement upon 10 days’ written notice as provided in Section 18.2.3 or exercise any other 

remedies available to Agency under this Agreement unless Recipient has fully cured such 

default prior to the expiration of such 10-day notice period. 

 

16.3 In the event Agency is in default under Section 15 and whether or not Recipient elects to 

exercise its right to terminate this Agreement under Section 18, or in the event Agency 

terminates this Agreement under Sections 18.2.1, 18.2.2, or 18.2.4, Recipient’s sole remedy 

will be a claim for reimbursement of expenses incurred in accordance with this Agreement, 

less any claims Agency has against Recipient. In no event will Agency be liable to Recipient 

for any expenses related to termination of this Agreement or for anticipated profits or loss. If 

previous amounts paid to Recipient exceed the amount due to Recipient under this Section 

16.2, Recipient shall promptly pay any excess to Agency. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F1AC125A-1910-42FF-87F6-485A9AEB5D11



  Agreement No. 8093 
   

BOS – (City of Umatilla) 8 ADW 

 

 

17. Recovery of Overpayments; Withholding of Funds 

 

17.1 If payments to Recipient under this Agreement, or any other agreement between Agency 

and Recipient, exceed the amount to which Recipient is entitled, Agency may, after notifying 

Recipient in writing, withhold from payments due Recipient under this Agreement, such 

amounts, over such periods of times, as are necessary to recover the amount of the 

overpayment.   

 

17.2 Agency may withhold any and all undisbursed Grant Funds from Recipient if Agency 

determines, in its sole discretion, that Recipient has failed to timely satisfy any material 

obligation arising under this Agreement, including but not limited to providing complete, 

accurate, and timely reports in a form satisfactory to Agency, or if Agency determines that 

the rate or scale of requests for Grant Funds in any expenditure category materially deviates 

from an applicable NOA or is unsubstantiated by related documentation. 

 

 

18. Termination 

 

18.1 This Agreement may be terminated at any time by mutual written consent of the Parties. 

 

18.2 Agency may terminate this Agreement as follows: 

 

18.2.1 Immediately upon written notice to Recipient, if Agency fails to receive funding, 

appropriations, limitations, or other expenditure authority at levels sufficient, in Agency’s 

reasonable administrative discretion, to perform its obligations under this Agreement; 

 

18.2.2 Immediately upon written notice to Recipient, if federal or state laws, rules, regulations, 

or guidelines are modified or interpreted in such a way that Agency’s performance under 

this Agreement is prohibited or Agency is prohibited from paying for such performance 

from the planned funding source; 

 

18.2.3 If Recipient is in default under this Agreement and such default remains uncured for a 

period of 10 days following completion of the process outlined in Section 16.2; or 

 

18.2.4 As otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement. 

 

18.3 Recipient may terminate this Agreement immediately upon written notice to Agency, if 

Agency is in default under this Agreement and such default remains uncured 15 days after 

written notice to Agency. 

 

18.4 Upon receiving a notice of termination of this Agreement, Recipient will immediately 

cease all activities under this Agreement, unless Agency expressly directs otherwise in such 

notice. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F1AC125A-1910-42FF-87F6-485A9AEB5D11



  Agreement No. 8093 
   

BOS – (City of Umatilla) 9 ADW 

 

 

19. Insurance 

 

19.1 Recipient shall insure, or self-insure, and be independently responsible for the risk 

of its own liability for claims within the scope of the Oregon Tort Claims Act (ORS 30.260 

through 30.300). 

 

19.2  Recipient shall require its subcontractors to maintain insurance coverages that meet or 

exceed Recipient’s standard policies and practices with respect to the subcontracted 

activities, and which in all cases shall be no less than commercially reasonable insurance 

coverages, consistent with applicable industry standards.  
 

19.3 Project Insurance.  In addition to any other insurance required under Section 19 of this 

Agreement, Recipient must ensure that the real property and improvements (collectively, the 

“Property”) related to the Grant Activities is insured against liability and risk of direct 

physical loss, damage or destruction in types and amounts at least to the extent that similar 

insurance is customarily carried by entities developing, constructing, and maintaining similar 

property and facilities. Types and amounts of insurance may include, but are not limited to: 

workers’ compensation insurance, commercial general liability, auto liability (including 

necessary coverage if transporting hazardous material), professional liability (including 

professional liability for the design, architecture, and engineering of the Property), pollution 

liability (including necessary lead and/or asbestos coverage), and builder’s risk insurance.  

Insurance shall be maintained until the Recipient no longer has an insurable interest in the 

Property.  

 

19.4 All insurance will be written by a company or companies reasonably acceptable to 

Agency; will require reasonable, but not less than thirty (30) days, prior written notice to 

Agency of cancellation or non-renewal; will contain waivers of subrogation and 

endorsements that no act or negligence of Recipient or any occupant will affect the validity 

or enforceability of such insurance as against Agency. As proof of insurance, Recipient will 

forward to Agency, upon request, certificates evidencing the coverage required under this 

Agreement and copies of all policies. Acceptance of such proof of insurance by Agency does 

not constitute approval or agreement that the insurance related to the Grant Activities is 

adequate.  Recipient must provide at least thirty (30) days’ written notice to Agency of any 

significant changes, including, but not limited to, cancellations and non-payment, to the 

policy that would affect the coverage. 

 

19.5 Casualty/Loss Restoration. After the occurrence of any casualty to the Property, 

Recipient will give prompt written notice of the casualty to Agency, specifically describing the 

nature and cause of such casualty and the extent of the damage or destruction to the Property. 

In the event of any casualty to the Property, Recipient will immediately take such action as is 

necessary to make the site safe and legal, including, if necessary, demolition of any 

improvement, removal of debris, and/or grading the site. Recipient, subject to the rights of an 

approved senior mortgage lender, if any, assigns to Agency all insurance proceeds that 

Recipient may be entitled to receive with respect to any casualty. In the event Recipient desires 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F1AC125A-1910-42FF-87F6-485A9AEB5D11



  Agreement No. 8093 
   

BOS – (City of Umatilla) 10 ADW 

to rebuild or restore the Property, insurance proceeds will be placed in escrow, with escrow 

instructions to release funds for invoices related to such reconstruction. Agency will have the 

right to review and approve of reconstruction plans and may require the conditional release of 

liens as condition of escrow payments. No proceeds will be released if Recipient is in default 

under this Agreement. If Recipient (i) does not elect to restore the Property, or (ii) is in default 

under this Agreement, Agency may apply the insurance proceeds to satisfy Recipient’s 

obligations under this Agreement, subject to the rights of an approved senior mortgage lender, 

if any. 

 

20. Availability of Funds 

Agency’s obligation to pay any amounts and otherwise perform its duties under this 

Agreement is conditioned upon Agency receiving funding, appropriations, limitations, 

allotments, or other expenditure authority sufficient to allow Agency, in the exercise of its 

reasonable administrative discretion, to meet its obligations under this Agreement. Nothing 

in this Agreement may be construed as permitting any violation of Article XI, section 7 of 

the Oregon Constitution or any other law limiting the activities, liabilities, or monetary 

obligations of Agency. 

 

21. Governing Law 

This Agreement shall be governed by and construed and enforced in accordance with the 

laws of the State of Oregon, without regard to principles of conflicts of law. Any claim, 

action, suit or proceeding (collectively “claim”) between Recipient and Agency or the State 

of Oregon that arises from or relates to this Agreement shall be brought and conducted solely 

and exclusively within the Circuit Court of Marion County for the State of Oregon, provided 

that in the event that a claim must be brought in a federal forum, the claim shall be brought 

and conducted solely and exclusively within the United States District Court for the District 

of Oregon. Recipient consents to the exclusive jurisdiction of such courts. Nothing in this 

Agreement constitutes consent by the State of Oregon to the jurisdiction of any court or a 

waiver by the State of Oregon of any defense or immunity, including but not limited to 

sovereign immunity and immunity under the Eleventh Amendment to the United States 

Constitution.  

 

22. Notice.  

Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, any notices to be given relating to 

this Agreement must be given in writing by email, personal delivery, or postage prepaid 

certified or registered mail, with return receipt, to a Party’s Authorized Representative at the 

physical address or email address set forth in Section 5 of this Agreement, or to such other 

addresses as either Party may indicate pursuant to this Section 22. Any notice so addressed 

and mailed becomes effective five days after mailing. Any notice given by personal delivery 

becomes effective when actually delivered. Any notice given by email becomes effective 

upon the sender’s receipt of confirmation of delivery, either by return email or by 

demonstrating through other technological means that the email has been delivered to the 

Recipient’s email address.  

  

DocuSign Envelope ID: F1AC125A-1910-42FF-87F6-485A9AEB5D11



  Agreement No. 8093 
   

BOS – (City of Umatilla) 11 ADW 

23. Survival 

All rights and obligations of the Parties under this Agreement will cease upon termination of 

this Agreement, other than those rights and obligations that by their express terms survive 

termination of this Agreement or would reasonably be expected to survive termination of this 

Agreement; provided, however, that termination of this Agreement will not prejudice any 

rights or obligations accrued to the Parties under this Agreement prior to termination. 

 

24. Intended Beneficiaries 

Agency and Recipient are the only parties to this Agreement and are the only parties entitled 

to enforce its terms. Nothing in this Agreement provides, is intended to provide, or may be 

construed to provide any direct or indirect benefit or right to third persons unless such third 

persons are individually identified by name herein and expressly described as intended 

beneficiaries of this Agreement. 

 

25. Assignment 

Recipient may not assign or transfer its interest in this Agreement without the prior written 

consent of Agency and any attempt by Recipient to assign or transfer its interest in this 

Agreement without such consent will be void and of no force or effect. Agency’s consent to 

Recipient’s assignment or transfer of its interest in this Agreement will not relieve Recipient 

of any of its duties or obligations under this Agreement. The provisions of this Agreement 

will be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Parties hereto, and their respective 

successors and permitted assigns. 

 

26. Subcontracts 

Recipient shall notify Agency prior to entering into any subcontracts for any of the activities 

required of Recipient under this Agreement. Agency’s receipt of notice of any subcontract 

will not relieve Recipient of any of its duties or obligations under this Agreement. For 

purposes of this Agreement, including but not limited to any exhibits incorporated into this 

Agreement, “subcontract” means any agreement pursuant to which Recipient compensates 

another party to carry out any activities under this Agreement, whether by contract for goods 

or services, grant agreement, or otherwise. For avoidance of doubt, the term “subcontractor” 

includes any subgrantee or subrecipient to which Recipient awards any funds received by 

Recipient under this Agreement. 

 

27. Merger; Waiver 

This Agreement and all exhibits and attachments, if any, constitute the entire agreement 

between the Parties on the subject matter hereof. There are no understandings, agreements, or 

representations, oral or written, not specified herein regarding this Agreement. No waiver or 

consent under this Agreement binds either Party unless in writing and signed by the 

applicable Party. Such waiver or consent, if made, is effective only in the specific instance 

and for the specific purpose given.  

 

28. Counterparts 

This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, all of which when taken together 

shall constitute one agreement, notwithstanding that all Parties are not signatories to the same 

counterpart. Each copy of the Agreement so executed constitutes an original. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F1AC125A-1910-42FF-87F6-485A9AEB5D11



  Agreement No. 8093 
   

BOS – (City of Umatilla) 12 ADW 

 

29. Signatures 

 

 

Oregon Housing and Community Services  City of Umatilla 

Department 

 

____________________________    _____________________________ 

Signature       Signature 

 

____________________________    _____________________________ 

Printed Name & Title     Printed Name & Title 

 

________________________    _______________________ 

Date        Date 

 

 

 

 

Approved for legal sufficiency by Senior AAG Marc Bocci via email on 11/06/2023.

DocuSign Envelope ID: F1AC125A-1910-42FF-87F6-485A9AEB5D11

Finance Director

11/14/2023

Melissa InceDesignated Procurement OfficerSandra Flickinger

11/15/2023



  Agreement No. 8093 
   

BOS – (City of Umatilla) 13 ADW 

Exhibit A 

 

Grant Activities 

1. Description. 

On January 10, 2023, Governor Kotek declared a homelessness state of emergency in response to 

the 80% rise in unsheltered homelessness in emergency areas since 2017. The Governor directed 

state agencies to prioritize efforts to reduce homelessness and established a statewide housing 

production advisory council. In addition to these efforts on the part of the state government, 

Agency will play a major role in the delivery of the Governor’s early investment package that 

was awarded funding to provide resources to the communities in the Rural Oregon Continuum of 

Care through House Bill (HB) 5019 during the 2023 Session of the Oregon Legislature. Agency 

will support communities in deploying these funds, including but not limited to support pursuant 

to this Agreement, in a coordinated effort to accomplish the following objectives: 

 

A. Increase shelter capacity, quality, and utilization in the region covered by the OR-505 

Oregon Balance of State Rural Continuum of Care by 100 beds; and  

 

B. Rehouse at least 450 households experiencing unsheltered homelessness in Balance of 

State areas.  

 

Agency is deploying Grant Funds pursuant to a Homelessness Emergency Response Program 

designed to accomplish the above objectives (the “Program”).  

2. Grant Activities. 

A. Regional Unsheltered Homelessness Emergency Response Plan.  Prior to eligibility for 

funding, Recipient submitted a Regional Unsheltered Homelessness Emergency Response 

Plan (“Plan”) to Agency that specifies, among other things: current local, state, federal, and 

other resources allocated to emergency shelter services, rehousing services, and housing 

stabilization services; and current service levels and gaps in services and resources in 

emergency response areas specifically impacting people experiencing unsheltered 

homelessness. The Plan is attached to and incorporated into this Agreement as Exhibit B and, 

together with this Exhibit A, defines the scope of grant activities (“Grant Activities”) 

authorized for the purposes of this Agreement. 

B. Compliance with Agreement. Recipient shall and shall cause and require by written 

agreement that its subcontractors comply with and perform all Grant Activities in accordance 

with the terms of this Agreement, including but not limited to all exhibits to this Agreement. 

The provisions of this Section 2 are supplemental to and do not limit the obligations of 

Recipient or its subcontractors arising under any other provision of this Agreement.  

C. Housing Focused.  All activities conducted under this Agreement must be Housing Focused. 

“Housing Focused” activities are defined as activities that seek to lower barriers for people 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F1AC125A-1910-42FF-87F6-485A9AEB5D11



  Agreement No. 8093 
   

BOS – (City of Umatilla) 14 ADW 

experiencing homelessness or housing instability. Activities conducted under this Agreement 

may not screen participants out solely on the basis of certain behavioral, psychological, 

physiological, citizenship or immigration status or economic preconditions. Housing Focused 

services must ensure that the safety and support of both staff and clients are paramount.  This 

is accomplished through a focus on ensuring safety by managing behaviors that pose a risk to 

health and safety rather than implementing blanket exclusions based on a past diagnosis or 

current behavioral health symptoms that do not pose a direct risk to community safety.  

Furthermore, Recipient must actively coordinate services and supports for helping people exit 

homelessness and make efforts to reduce the barriers to re-housing individuals and families in 

their community.  

D. No Supplanting of Other Funds.  Recipient may not use funds provided under this 

Agreement to supplant other funds available for the same purpose. Furthermore, Recipient 

agrees that during the term of this Agreement, the funding available for homeless services 

from sources other than this Agreement will not be reduced from the levels outlined in the 

Plan, and that in the event of any such reduction, Agency may exercise any of the remedies 

available to it under this Agreement or at law or in equity.  Recipient also agrees to comply 

with reporting requirements as outlined in Section 3 of this Exhibit A (Program Specific 

Reporting) to demonstrate the levels of funding from other sources as outlined in the Plan are 

sustained throughout the term of this Agreement and that no reductions to such funding are 

made. Failure by Recipient to comply with this Section 2(D) is a material breach of this 

Agreement, and entitles Agency to exercise any remedies available to it under this Agreement 

or at law or in equity. 

E. Client Evaluation.  Recipient shall conduct an initial evaluation of clients in accordance 

with local Continuum of Care (“CoC”) requirements applicable at the time of client 

evaluation. For the purposes of client eligibility, Recipient must determine which 

category of housing status each household meets. Eligibility based on housing status shall 

be determined based upon the initial engagement with the client.   

The eligibility categories are as follows:  

  

Category 1: Literally Homeless—Individual or family that lacks a fixed, regular, and  

adequate nighttime residence, meaning:  

  

• Living in a primary nighttime residence that is a public or private place not 

designed for human habitation (including, but not limited to, a car, park, abandoned 

building, bus or train station, airport or camping ground);  

  

• Living in a publicly or privately operated shelter designated to provide temporary 

living arrangements (including congregate shelters, transitional shelters, and hotels or 

motels paid for by charitable organizations or by federal, state or local government 

programs); or  

DocuSign Envelope ID: F1AC125A-1910-42FF-87F6-485A9AEB5D11



  Agreement No. 8093 
   

BOS – (City of Umatilla) 15 ADW 

• Exiting an institution where the individual or family has resided for 90 days or 

less AND who resided in an emergency shelter or place not meant for human 

habitation immediately before entering that institution.  

 

Category 2: Imminent Risk of Homelessness—Individual or family that will   

lose their primary nighttime residence provided that:  

• The primary nighttime residence will be lost within 14 days of the date of 

application for homeless assistance;  

• No subsequent residence has been identified; AND  

• The individual or family lacks the resources or support networks (e.g., family, 

friends, faith-based or other social networks) needed to obtain other permanent 

housing.  

  

Category 3: Homeless Under Other Federal Statutes—Unaccompanied youth under 

25 years of age, or families with children and youth, who do not otherwise qualify as 

homeless under another category, (literally homeless, imminent risk of homelessness or  

fleeing/attempting to flee domestic violence) but who:  

• Are defined as homeless under other listed federal statutes;  

• Have not had a lease, ownership interest, or occupancy agreement in permanent 

housing during the 60 days prior to the Program assistance eligibility determination;   

• Have experienced persistent instability as measured by two moves or more during 

the preceding 60 days; AND  

• Can be expected to continue in such status for an extended period of time due to 

special needs or barriers.  

  

Category 4: Fleeing/Attempting to Flee Domestic Violence—Individual or family 

that:  

• Is fleeing, or is attempting to flee, domestic violence;  

• Has no other safe residence; AND  

• Lacks the resources or support networks to obtain other permanent housing.  

 

Category 5: Unstably Housed—Individual or family that:  

• Is at risk of losing their housing, and does not otherwise qualify as homeless 

under Categories 1-4 listed above; 

• Has been notified to vacate current residence or otherwise demonstrate high risk 

of losing current housing; AND  

DocuSign Envelope ID: F1AC125A-1910-42FF-87F6-485A9AEB5D11



  Agreement No. 8093 
   

BOS – (City of Umatilla) 16 ADW 

• Lacks the resources or support networks to obtain other permanent housing.   

 

Category 6: Unsheltered Homelessness – Individual or family that is living in a 

primary nighttime residence that is a public or private place not designed for human 

habitation (including, but not limited to, a car, park, abandoned building, bus or train 

station, airport or camping ground).   

 

Client eligibility criteria for each of the above categories are as follows: 

o Rapid Re-housing Client Eligibility Criteria: 

▪ Household must meet the following Housing Status Criteria at time of 

initial engagement: 

• Category 6: Unsheltered Homelessness 

o Shelter and Street Outreach Client Eligibility Criteria: 

▪ Household must meet the following Housing Status Criteria: 

• Category 1: Literally Homeless 

• Category 2: Imminent Risk of Homelessness 

• Category 3: Homeless Under Other Federal Statutes 

• Category 4: Fleeing/Attempting to Flee Domestic Violence 

• Category 6: Unsheltered Homelessness 

o  Grant Funds under this Agreement are not allowed to be used for households 

meeting Category 5, Unstably Housed. Prevention funding will be deployed to 

local communities through other agreements.  

F.  Low Barrier Shelter Requirement.  Funding under this Agreement for shelter acquisition, 

operation and construction must only be utilized to create new shelter bed capacity that meets 

the following definition of Low Barrier Shelter: 

Low and no barrier policies allow homeless individuals and households to 

access shelter, housing, and services without preconditions such as sobriety, 

compliance with treatment plan, no pets, or agreement to participate in specific 

programs, activities, or classes. These policies allow those most in need to have 

access to shelter and housing. The emergency shelter beds added pursuant to 

this Agreement must be low barrier, focus on assessment and triage, and 

facilitate access to permanent housing resources so that people move through to 

housing quickly. Recipient may request technical assistance from the Agency 

to modify shelter policies to meet this definition.  

DocuSign Envelope ID: F1AC125A-1910-42FF-87F6-485A9AEB5D11



  Agreement No. 8093 
   

BOS – (City of Umatilla) 17 ADW 

In order to meet minimum standards as a Low Barrier shelter, the following three conditions 

must be met: 

▪ Sobriety* and treatment are voluntary; 

▪ No required documentation of identification, custody, citizenship, or 

gender. Furthermore, shelters must meet the Department of Housing 

and Urban Development’s Equal Access Rule, 81 FR 64763, to ensure 

services are available to all individuals and families regardless of 

sexual orientation, gender identity, or marital status; and 

▪ Shelter accommodates pets and belongings. 

*Note: Low-barrier shelters may establish requirements that limit the 

use of drugs and alcohol in common or shared areas of the facility. In 

addition, facilities may establish behavioral expectations that limit 

disruptive or violent behavior resulting from intoxication. However, 

Low Barrier Shelters may not impose a requirement to abstain 

completely from alcohol or drug use. 

Furthermore, Agency is recommending the adoption of the following best practices as key 

indicators of a successful Low Barrier Shelter: 

▪ Shelter has minimal expectations or requirements of people seeking 

shelter;  

▪ Shelter focuses on addressing disruptive or dangerous behaviors rather 

than compliance to rules or case plans;  

▪ Shelter welcomes self-defined family and kinship groups to seek 

shelter together;  

▪ Shelter can identify financial resources that can support the adoption of 

low barrier policies and practices and supports extended or flexible 

hours and adapted service-delivery models; 

▪ Shelter accommodates pets and belongings;  

▪ Shelter’s intake process and housing navigation services coordinate 

closely with community-based outreach services and coordinated entry;  

▪ Shelter creates flexible and predictable access for people seeking 

shelter; 

▪ No charge to individuals or families for stays, meals, or services at the 

low barrier shelter; and 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F1AC125A-1910-42FF-87F6-485A9AEB5D11



  Agreement No. 8093 
   

BOS – (City of Umatilla) 18 ADW 

▪ Shelter does not exclude people with criminal convictions, poor credit, 

or eviction histories. 

Recipient may fund shelters that require sobriety or drug and alcohol treatment services 

but otherwise meet the definition of Low Barrier Shelter as outlined in this Agreement in 

order to provide access to the special needs of people who are in recovery from drugs and 

alcohol.  For example, a facility that meets the definition of Alcohol and Drug Free 

Community housing as outlined in ORS 90.243 may qualify for funding. Such use of 

funds for shelters that require sobriety or drug and alcohol treatment services must be as 

outlined in the Plan (Exhibit B). Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, 

no more than 30% of the shelter bed capacity created in each community under this 

Agreement is permitted to be subject to required sobriety or drug and alcohol treatment 

services. 

G. New Shelter Bed Requirement.  New shelter bed capacity is defined as beds that are added 

to a local region as a direct result of funding under this Agreement. Beds may be counted if 

the building requires rehabilitation prior to the shelter being operational or put into use, if 

needed. It also may include beds that are added to existing shelters through expansion. If a bed 

is not available in a local region due to lack of operational funding, Grant Funds may be used 

to bring the bed into active use and the bed would count as added shelter capacity for purposes 

of this Agreement. Shelter funds may not be used to supplant existing resources, consistent 

with Section 2(D) of this Exhibit A. Shelter beds may not be counted toward the goal of new 

shelter beds as outlined in this Agreement unless new beds are being added into an existing 

shelter or an entirely new shelter facility is brought online as a result of funding under this 

Agreement.  

H. Habitability Requirements.  Shelters, whether congregate or non-congregate, must meet 

habitability requirements that include minimum safety, sanitation, and privacy standards as 

outlined in 24 CFR § 576.403, regardless of whether 24 CFR § 576.403 independently applies 

to such shelters apart from this Agreement. Shelters must be structurally sound. Tents and 

other structures without hardened surfaces that do not meet these minimum standards are 

unallowable. Recipient must document habitability requirements for all shelters funded under 

this Agreement. Agency will provide technical assistance reasonably requested to ensure 

compliance with habitability requirements.  

Shelter units may be in the form of Non-Congregate Free-Standing Units if they provide the 

following amenities: 

▪ Heat 

▪ Electricity 

▪ The ability to close and lock a door 

▪ Showers and restrooms onsite 

▪ Hard-surface walls and roofing  

DocuSign Envelope ID: F1AC125A-1910-42FF-87F6-485A9AEB5D11



  Agreement No. 8093 
   

BOS – (City of Umatilla) 19 ADW 

▪ Food preparation facilities available onsite or with an action plan to 

provide meals to shelter residents 

I. Use of Grant Funds.  Consistent with the Plan as well as any applicable NOA, Grant Funds 

may be utilized for the following purposes:  

i) Acquisition, construction, conversion, or rehabilitation of shelters that increase the shelter 

bed capacity in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, including but not limited to 

Sections 2(F), 2(G) and 2(H) of this Exhibit A. 

(1) Acquisition means acquiring property through purchase, donation, trade, or any 

other method for the purposes of utilization as an emergency shelter. 

(2) Conversion means changing the function of a piece of property from one use to 

another. 

(3) Rehabilitation means action taken to return a property to a useful state by means 

of repair, modification, or alteration.  

ii) Shelter operations, services and supports for shelter beds that increase capacity as 

determined in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 

 

iii) Street outreach services, including housing navigation and placement services. 

 

iv) Sanitation services.  

 

v)  Rapid-rehousing services, including landlord incentives to secure available units, through 

block-leasing strategies or other means, for people exiting homelessness. Rental assistance 

commitments, when utilized under rapid-rehousing services, may be issued for up to a 12-

month period of time after client move in and may also be issued in the form of an upfront 

payment to the landlord. Rental assistance commitments may include pre-paid costs to 

encourage landlord participation. Costs may also include paying for damages or past due 

housing debt to secure new units or resources. Supportive housing services may be provided 

for block-leased units and for households that are rehoused pursuant to this Agreement to 

ensure participants are able to stay securely housed and landlords are supported for various 

needs.  

 

vi) For all clients who are re-housed utilizing Grant Funds, Recipient is required to provide 

landlord with documentation showing that the landlord participated in the Program to 

ensure Agency can provide further guarantees of financial assistance through the Landlord 

Guarantee Program. Agency shall provide templates that Recipient may use for this 

purpose.  

 

vii) Capacity Building services, including funds for the purposes of promoting growth, 

encouraging development, increasing Recipient’s capacity to better support homeless 

services delivered, and strengthening community efforts around supporting people 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F1AC125A-1910-42FF-87F6-485A9AEB5D11



  Agreement No. 8093 
   

BOS – (City of Umatilla) 20 ADW 

experiencing homelessness; and expend funds to procure and provide needed technical 

assistance related to grant administration, homeless services best practices, system 

design, and other critical areas of learning and growth, including, but not limited to:  

(1) Training offered to staff and/or community partners for further skill development of 

those that are participating and working on addressing homelessness in the local 

community; 

(2) Technical assistance, including but not limited to fiscal training, grant management 

support, policy refinement and development, strategizing planning and development 

around homeless supportive services, and developing or improving data collection 

methods that inform programmatic improvements; 

(3) Establishment or expansion of organizational outreach efforts and engagement to 

identify existing resources, avoid duplication of services and resources, cultivate 

new partnerships and relationships, including with organizations that identify as 

culturally responsive or culturally specific, and develop seamless pathways to 

providing services to those seeking support; 

(4) Increase organization staffing; and 

(5) Homeless Management Information System (HMIS) and coordinated entry training, 

support, and continued education. 

 

viii) Administrative costs up to the limit outlined in the Plan (Exhibit B) including, but not 

limited to:  

(1) Senior executive management personnel salaries and benefits (unless they are directly 

involved in Program operations), administrative staff travel costs; 

(2) General services such as accounting, budget development, personnel, contracting, 

marketing, agency audit, and agency insurance;  

(3) Board expenses (excluding meals);  

(4) Planning and implementation of Local Planning group infrastructure 

(5) Organization-wide membership fees and dues specific to the Program;  

(6) General agency facilities costs (including those associated with executive positions), 

such as rent, depreciation expenses, and operation and maintenance (as part of the 

organization’s direct or indirect cost allocation plan); and  

(7) Equipment rental/purchase, insurance, utilities, and information technology costs that 

are not specific to the Program but relate to the administration of the Recipient as a 

whole. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F1AC125A-1910-42FF-87F6-485A9AEB5D11



  Agreement No. 8093 
   

BOS – (City of Umatilla) 21 ADW 

Recipient may also utilize Grant Funds to address the specific needs of various homeless 

subpopulations as set forth in the Plan. Targeting of funds must not violate the Fair Housing 

Act or other applicable anti-discrimination requirements.  

3. Program Specific Reporting. 

Recipient shall and shall cause and require its subcontractors by written agreement to submit to 

Agency all reports as required in this Agreement. Recipient shall and shall cause and require its 

subcontractors by written agreement to ensure that data collection and reporting, which may include 

personally identifiable information, be conducted through the use of Agency-approved systems 

including HMIS or HMIS-Comparable systems for Victim Service Providers. Recipient shall utilize 

existing systems of Agency (OPUS for fiscal management, and HMIS for Program outcome 

management, Procorem for reporting submission) for all funding under this Agreement in accordance 

with applicable policies and procedures of Agency.  Recipient shall provide service provider technical 

assistance to users in Recipient’s region and may request additional assistance from Agency as 

needed.  

Recipient may request a reporting deadline extension. An extension must be approved in writing by 

Agency and such approval may be granted or withheld in Agency’s sole discretion. Requests must be 

emailed to HCS.REPORTING@hcs.oregon.gov prior to the submission deadline.  

The following reports and other documents shall be submitted to Agency throughout the Performance 

Period and for any additional period as required to include all reportable activities performed during, 

the Performance Period and all other reportable information relating to the Performance Period: 

A. Monthly disaggregated data using the SAP Business Objects (the HMIS reporting tool). A 

monthly System Query Report will be run by Agency. A file with aggregated data will be 

generated and provided to the Recipient to confirm their monthly data as complete and 

accurate. If needed, the Recipient will have 5 days to update or correct data in HMIS. Agency 

will re-run a final System Query Reports on the 25th of each month.  

B. If using funding under this Agreement to add new shelter beds, Recipient must provide 

required data in the form and manner required by the Rural Oregon Continuum of Care to the 

CoC HMIS Administrator for the Housing Inventory (HIC) Bed/Unit Inventory updates by 20 

days following the end of each month. This can be reported using the HIC report in SAP 

Business Objects or an Excel spreadsheet of the CoC’s Housing Inventory (complete), 

maintained outside of HMIS. 

C. Requests for funds through the OPUS system must be submitted, within 60 days of the end of 

each quarter. A final request for funds must be submitted for all fiscal year expenses not 

previously reported within 60 days of each fiscal year end.  

D. If Recipient reported shelter(s) under development in the Monthly Housing Inventory update, 

then Recipient must submit a narrative update in a manner prescribed by Agency by the last 

day of the month. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F1AC125A-1910-42FF-87F6-485A9AEB5D11

mailto:HCS.REPORTING@hcs.oregon.gov


  Agreement No. 8093 
   

BOS – (City of Umatilla) 22 ADW 

E. If using funding under this Agreement for purposes described in Section 2(I)(vii) above, 

then Recipient must submit a narrative update in a manner prescribed by Agency on the 

last day of each quarter.  

 

F. Recipient shall provide additional reports, including those requested by the CoC HMIS 

Administrator at the direction of Agency, and shall cooperatively attend meetings with 

Agency, as reasonably requested by Agency. 

4. Performance Measures 

Recipient shall and shall cause and require its subcontractors by written agreement to conduct the 

Grant Activities in a manner consistent with the requirements of this Agreement and to achieve the 

following performance goals, as well as the performance goals that are outlined in the Plan: 

A. Increased housing stability as measured by the number of individuals who were successfully 

re-housed and who met eligibility criteria as outlined in this Agreement before the end of the 

Performance Period unless otherwise stated. 

B. Increased shelter availability and utilization in boundary area of the Continuum of Care or 

identified sub-region as defined in the Plan as measured by a percentage increase in the 

number of new shelter beds as defined in this Agreement available and operational in the 

region referenced above by the end of the Performance Period, unless otherwise stated. 

 

5.  Restrictive Covenants for Shelter Facilities 

 

Recipient shall operate the shelter facilities acquired, converted, renovated or rehabilitated 

pursuant to the Grant Activities (the “Facilities”) and provide such related services as are 

required under the Grant Activities and other provisions of this Agreement for the restrictive use 

period as provided below (the “Restrictive Use Period”).   

Recipient must place a Declaration of Restrictive Covenants on the Facilities restricting the use of the 

Facilities to provide the housing and services as described in this Agreement.  The Declaration of 

Restrictive Covenants shall be in such form as required by Agency and shall be filed, at the 

Recipient’s expense, in the real property records of each county in which the Facilities are located. 

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement, the obligations set forth in the Declaration of 

Restrictive Covenants shall continue in full force and effect throughout the entire Restrictive Use 

Period and until the expiration of such obligations under the terms of the Declaration of Restrictive 

Covenants.  Recipient acknowledges and agrees that such obligations will survive the expiration or 

termination of this Agreement. Recipient shall execute all other documents reasonably required by 

Agency in connection with the Declaration of Restrictive Covenants. Agency may waive any of the 

requirements pertaining to Facility restrictive covenants at its sole discretion.  

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F1AC125A-1910-42FF-87F6-485A9AEB5D11



  Agreement No. 8093 
   

BOS – (City of Umatilla) 23 ADW 

Restrictive Use Period 

The Restrictive Use Period for all Facilities that are acquired or constructed by Recipient through 

the use of Grant Funds is 10 years as described below.   

The Restrictive Use Periods for Facilities that are placed in service following rehabilitation or 

conversion of an existing structure are as set forth in the table below.  

The Restrictive Use Period runs from the date the Facility is placed in service until December 31 

of the final year of the Restrictive Use Period. Recipient must agree to certify compliance with 

this requirement and submit that certification to Agency on an annual basis, or upon request of 

Agency, throughout the Restrictive Use Period. 

Before Recipient uses any Grant Funds to construct, rehabilitate or convert a Facility to be located 

on leased property, Recipient shall request prior written approval of Agency.  Agency may approve 

or disapprove of such use of Grant Funds in its sole discretion and any such Agency approval may 

include modifications to the Restrictive Use Period as determined by Agency in its sole discretion.    

 

Rehabilitation and Conversion Minimum Period of Use 

Type of Activity Definition Minimum 

Period of Use 

Minor Rehabilitation The cost of the rehabilitation of an existing 

emergency shelter is 75% or less of the value 

of the building before rehabilitation* 

3 Years 

 

Major Rehabilitation 

The cost of the rehabilitation of an existing 
emergency shelter exceeds 75% of the 
value of the building before rehabilitation* 

10 Years 

Minor Conversion The cost of the conversion of a building to 

an emergency shelter is 75% or less of the 

value of the building after conversion* 

3 Years 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F1AC125A-1910-42FF-87F6-485A9AEB5D11



  Agreement No. 8093 
   

BOS – (City of Umatilla) 24 ADW 

Major Conversion The cost of the conversion of a building to 

an emergency shelter exceeds 75% of the 

value of the building after conversion* 

10 Years 

* The value of each shelter building is the fair market value of the building, as 

determined by an independent real estate appraiser approved by Agency or by an 

Agency-approved process.  

Transferring Property Ownership 

Within the Restrictive Use Period, Recipient may not transfer, repurpose, sell, assign, bequeath, 

or dispose of any interest in the Facilities or the underlying real property to any person, entity or 

other assignee, without obtaining the prior written consent of Agency. Agency may condition 

any such consent on the agreement of the transferee to assume all obligations of Recipient under 

this Agreement for the duration of the Restrictive Use Period. The proposed use of any monies 

gained from the transaction must be pre-approved by Agency.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

DocuSign Envelope ID: F1AC125A-1910-42FF-87F6-485A9AEB5D11



  Agreement No. 8093 
   

BOS – (City of Umatilla) 25 ADW 

 

Exhibit B 

Regional Plan 

The purpose of Oregon’s EO 23-02 initiative is to increase state investments and 

strengthen the connection between state and local priorities in response to Oregon’s 

long-growing unsheltered homelessness crisis. Oregon’s Departments of Emergency 

Management (OEM) and Housing and Community Services (OHCS) have partnered to 

lead this work with the Office of the Governor. 

OHCS will deliver $26.135 million to the Oregon Balance of State region to increase 

shelter capacity by 100 units and rehouse at least 450 households by June 30, 2025. 

OEM and OHCS will lead this work and coordinate state agency support for local 

implementation. Over the course of the Performance Period, state partners will support 

regional and community partners in the response effort to implement the following 

Regional Community Plan. The creation of this plan was through a collaborative 

process with local stakeholders throughout the region and submitted to OHCS by the 

region’s Local Planning Group on behalf of involved community partners, including 

those implementing shelter work across the region. The City of Umatilla has been 

granted funds specifically for implementation of the region’s shelter goals, as shown in 

the region’s Regional Community Plan.  

 

Community Analysis

  

Part 1: Community Engagement and Data Review 

 
1) Please summarize your community engagement processes and the 

efforts made to ensure that the perspectives of people 

experiencing homelessness, frontline service providers, and groups 

at a high risk of experiencing homelessness inform regional 

priorities throughout Phase 2. Please list decision making processes 

and track community engagement efforts here as well. 

 

The Region 7 Local Planning Group (LPG) has been diligently engaging with 

city and county elected officials, county department leaders, tribal nation 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F1AC125A-1910-42FF-87F6-485A9AEB5D11



  Agreement No. 8093 
   

BOS – (City of Umatilla) 26 ADW 

representatives, CAPECO ambassadors, culturally specific organizations, 

shelter providers, as well as individual community members who are 

interested in helping with this work. The following entities have been 

actively engaged in this process: 

• Community Action Program of East Central Oregon (CAPECO) 

• Umatilla County Commissioners 

• PATH Advisory Committee 

• Stepping Stones Alliance 

• Umatilla County Housing Authority 

• Oregon Human Development Corporation (OHDC) 

• Oregon Department of Human Services (ODHS) 

• Oregon, Washington Health Network (OWHN) 

• Confederated Tribes of the Umatilla Indian 

Reservation (CTUIR) 

• Umatilla County CARE program 

• Gilliam County Commissioner 

• Umatilla County Developmental Disability Services 

• Senior Services of Gilliam County 

• Gilliam County Victims Assistance Program 

• Umatilla County Planning Department 

• Community Counseling Solutions (CCS) 

• Gilliam County Transportation 

• Veteran Services Program 

• Euvalcree 

• Milton-Freewater School District 

• Pendleton City Council Members 

• Pendleton Treatment Centers (PTC) 

The above listed partners provide a wide range of services to the local community members 

including but not limited to: 

 

• Low Income Housing 

• Rent Subsidies 

• Drop in Peer Centers 

• Peer to Peer Support 

• Advocacy 

• Hotel Assistance 

• Scholarship Programs 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F1AC125A-1910-42FF-87F6-485A9AEB5D11



  Agreement No. 8093 
   

BOS – (City of Umatilla) 27 ADW 

• Work Experience Training Programs 

• Respite 

• Referrals to Alcohol and Drug Treatment 

• Transportation 

• Mental Health Services 

• Substance Abuse Services 

• Case Management 

• Representative Payee Services 

• Utility Assistance 

• Rental Application Fees 

• System Navigation Services 

• Support for Expecting Mothers 

• Doula Services 

• Facilitated Support Groups 

• Treatment Placement 

• Emergency Shelters 

• Financial Education 

• Free Meals 

• Food Pantries 

• Resource Connection 

 

This engagement was achieved by bringing to the table currently established groups 

throughout the region. Examples of these established groups include a monthly 

Homeless Round Table Discussion group, hosted by Umatilla County Commissioner 

Cindy Timmons, the PATH projects work on the Sleep Center that will provide shelter 

for the unhoused, and the Home 4 Hope Coalition, hosted by CAPECO, was created to 

bring people together to address homelessness. Region 7 partners are encouraged to 

invite others to participate in this group and we continue to grow and gain new 

partners as this planning is developed. 

 

The Region 7 LPG partners work and engage with unsheltered individuals, families, 

and youth on an ongoing basis. However, we recognize that we have not been able to 

engage the voice of people experiencing homelessness/lived experience in this stage 

of the planning process. Our group felt that this engagement needs to be done in a 

meaningful manner. Although the voice of our homeless population was not 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F1AC125A-1910-42FF-87F6-485A9AEB5D11



  Agreement No. 8093 
   

BOS – (City of Umatilla) 28 ADW 

physically present during the LPG meetings, several of our LPG members purposefully 

met with those currently experiencing homelessness to ensure we were prepared to 

submit this plan. We plan on rolling out listening sessions in safe spaces for our 

people experiencing homelessness. We plan to have specific listening sessions for 

single adults, families, youth, unaccompanied minors, and culturally specific 

populations throughout the 4-county region. These sessions will be conducted in 

partnership with LPG members. LPG members can help facilitate discussions with the 

target population, so individuals feel comfortable to share their thoughts, ideas, and 

feedback. The Region 7 LPG strongly embraces the statement “nothing about us, 

without us”. 

 

Invitation to participate in these listening sessions will be limited and we will have more 

than one session for each target population. We plan on offering an incentive for 

participation and will tailor each incentive specific to the group we are engaging with. 

Our LPG partners will help with identifying people who are experiencing 

homelessness that will be able to provide the needed feedback to inform system 

change. 

 

Region 7 LPG decision making process is as follows: 

 

a. Identify need or issue- anyone in the group can do this. 

b. Provide data or other supporting/contributing factors. 

c. Discuss resources and barriers. 

d. Come to an agreement that a majority in the LPG can support and meets our 

goals and community needs. 

 

LPG Partners community engagement efforts include: 

• Local Outreach Events 

• Local Partnerships 

• Peer to Peer Meetings 

• Quarterly Surveys 

• Multi-Cultural Assessments 

• Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Committee Work 

• Community Meetings 

• Civic Group presentation 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F1AC125A-1910-42FF-87F6-485A9AEB5D11



  Agreement No. 8093 
   

BOS – (City of Umatilla) 29 ADW 

• Bi-lingual Outreach Materials 

• Bi-lingual/bicultural Staff 

• Marketing Plans 

• Social Media 

• Assessing of Barriers 

• Community Liaisons 

 

The LPG plans on continuing and increasing these efforts with the support of the funding 

provided through this Emergency Order. 

 

2) Local Planning Groups will seek input from disproportionately impacted groups 

and communities in an ongoing effort to develop a shared understanding of 

individual and regional challenges facing people experiencing unsheltered 

homelessness. Please add any additional qualitative or quantitative data or 

information that was shared to better understand the impact of unsheltered 

homelessness on their communities. 

 

The Region 7 LPG looked at the data provided from OHCS in the workbook (Census, 2022 PIT, 

etc) as well as the 2023 uncertified PIT Count, coordinated entry data, shelter bed nights, as 

well as total number of people accessing Housing Authority services. 

 

Region 7 LPG includes our local Tribal Nation, Confederated Tribes of the Umatilla Indian 

Reservation (CTUIR). CTUIR has received their own allocation of this funding, but we recognize 

the need to work together to meet the needs of our unhoused populations. Oregon Human 

Development Corporation (focus on farmworkers) is also a strong partner in the Region 7 

LPG. We appreciate the unique perspectives our area’s culturally specific organizations 

provide and the expertise in which they provided and engage with community members to 

deliver the services. 

 

The Region 7 LPG service area’s largest minority population is comprised by our Latinx 

community consisting of 28.9% of our total population, followed by our multi-racial 

community member at 11.98% and our Native community at 3.45%. 

 

After reviewing the provided quantitative data the LPG discussed the qualitative aspect of the 

data to identify what our local service providers are experiencing. Much of this qualitative 

data is driven by engagement and outreach efforts by LPG members. Some of those efforts 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F1AC125A-1910-42FF-87F6-485A9AEB5D11



  Agreement No. 8093 
   

BOS – (City of Umatilla) 30 ADW 

include: 

 

• Local Outreach Events 

• Local Partnerships 

• Peer to Peer Meetings 

• Quarterly Surveys 

• Multi-Cultural Assessments 

• Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Committee Work 

• Community Meetings 

• Civic Group presentation 

• Bi-lingual Outreach Materials 

• Bi-lingual/bicultural Staff 

• Marketing Plans 

• Social Media 

• Assessing of Barriers 

• Community Liaisons 

 

We also understand we need to bring the voice of our disproportionally impacted groups to 

this planning group. The Region 7 LPG will use a similar approach to the listening sessions 

described in question 1 bringing these voices to that table. We will work with our partners to 

identify people with lived experience to be change makers when doing this work. We plan to 

use their input and feedback to create system changes and to steer the work we are doing in 

the best way to serve those most vulnerable in our region. 

 

Part 2: Impact Analysis 

 

3) How many people experiencing unsheltered homelessness did your community 

have in 2022? 

97 per the PIT count provided in the workbook. 

 

However, we did analyze other reports through the HMIS system and reviewed Shelter Data and 

were able to identify over 300 people who experienced homelessness during the 

07/01/2022-06/30/2023 timeframe. The LPG was provided with the following graph from 

HMIS to show the unduplicated inflow and outflow of homelessness in the 4-county service 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F1AC125A-1910-42FF-87F6-485A9AEB5D11



  Agreement No. 8093 
   

BOS – (City of Umatilla) 31 ADW 

area. 

 

 

 

 

4) Based on quantitative data and qualitative community input, these 

three groups have a disproportionately high risk of experiencing 

unsheltered homelessness: 

a. Subpopulation 1: Chronically Homeless Individuals and Families with Behavioral 

Health/Addiction Barriers. 

i. Region 7 LPG identified this group as one of our subpopulations as 

the mental health/addiction services are limited in our region and 

the people in most need are not able to access services in a timely 

manner. Intake appointments for mental health services have a 

several months wait for appointments. We also understand that co-

occurring disorders are a strong contributing factor to unsheltered 

chronic homelessness. Our chronically unsheltered homes are a 

difficult group to move into rapid rehousing as they are the hardest 

to engage in services for a variety of reasons. Our LPG, through this 

funding, plans to provide intense case management, navigation, 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F1AC125A-1910-42FF-87F6-485A9AEB5D11



  Agreement No. 8093 
   

BOS – (City of Umatilla) 32 ADW 

and wraparound services. We want to provide the additional 

support this subpopulation needs to move out of unsheltered 

homelessness. Through our LPG service partners we plan to offer 

financial and tenant education along with basic life skills classes. 

ii. Our Behavioral Health Partner also provided the Measures and 

Outcomes Tracking System Report outlines the number of 

homeless unduplicated individuals they are serving throughout 

the 4-county region. 

 

Measures and Outcomes Tracking Systems Living Arrangement 

Report 2022-2023 (Unduplicated) 

 

b. Subpopulation 2: No Income Households (HH)’s/Under Income HH 

i. This subpopulation was identified as no income/under income 

individuals and families have high barriers to rent affordability and 

access to appropriate housing. They often face income 

discrimination and are vulnerable to financial abuse by family, 

peers, employers, etc. They are in need of strong advocacy and 

rental education to establish positive landlord interactions. Some of 

the navigation services we plan to provide to this group is 

completion of application assistance. We will assist in running 

background/credit checks to address any issues that a landlord my 

come across during the application process. Connect them with Fair 

Housing advocates as necessary and help them identify safe and 

appropriate housing to meet their needs, which may include non-

traditional rentals (Oxford Houses, Group Homes, Private Room 

rentals, Roommate situations, etc.) 

ii. Flexible Support services will be a vital piece to the success of these 

households and will be used as needed to maintain and sustain 

County of Residence Client Living Arrangement Client Count 

Gilliam Transient/Homeless 1 

Morrow Transient/Homeless 15 

Umatilla Transient/Homeless 260 

Wheeler Transient/Homeless 2 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F1AC125A-1910-42FF-87F6-485A9AEB5D11



  Agreement No. 8093 
   

BOS – (City of Umatilla) 33 ADW 

housing 

 

 

5) What culturally specific services are available and accessible 

to each of the three groups of people experiencing 

unsheltered homelessness in your community? 

a. Subpopulation 1: OHDC, CTUIR, Doulas Latinas 

b. Subpopulation 2: OHDC, CTUIR, Doulas Latinas 

 

6) What specific services or supports are available for 

individuals in these groups to access and sustain mainstream 

(education, health care, Social Security, etc.) services and 

community connections once people are housed? 

a. Subpopulation 1: Oxford House, Pendleton Treatment Centers, COPES, 

Eastern Oregon Alcohol Foundation Housing, Community Counseling 

Solutions, Rent Well tenant education, Financial Literacy Services, OHP 

Navigators, Affordable Health Care, Social Security, Section 8, Housing 

Authority, Low income housing rentals, service coordinators, peer to peer 

resources and support, basic life skills classes, ODHS 

b. Subpopulation 2: Rep payee service, Section 8, Housing Authority, Social 

Security Administration, Oregon Department of Human Services, OHP 

Navigators, Service Coordinators, basic life skills classes, financial literacy 

services, Rent Well tenant education 

 

Part 3: Community Priorities 

 
7) Please select all local needs that are immediate and major 

barriers to your community’s efforts to support people 

experiencing unsheltered homelessness in regaining housing, 

safety, and stability. 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F1AC125A-1910-42FF-87F6-485A9AEB5D11



  Agreement No. 8093 
   

BOS – (City of Umatilla) 34 ADW 

 

 

 

Goal Setting

  
Each community will determine priority strategies that will target its EO 23-02 

investments across its goals. Local Planning Groups will rely on the data and 

community analysis above to inform which of these strategies to prioritize. Local 

Planning Groups may gather additional data to better understand what local 

capacity and limitations should guide these investments. 

 

Based on the supports most needed and the services currently available in your 

community, please check only the boxes for the investment strategies that would 

most benefit your community’s efforts to rehouse people experiencing 

unsheltered homelessness. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F1AC125A-1910-42FF-87F6-485A9AEB5D11



  Agreement No. 8093 
   

BOS – (City of Umatilla) 35 ADW 

Part 1: Strategies to increase shelter capacity for individuals and families 

experiencing unsheltered homelessness 
 

 

 

Part 2: Strategies to rapidly rehouse individuals and families experiencing 

unsheltered homelessness 
 

 

 

 

  

DocuSign Envelope ID: F1AC125A-1910-42FF-87F6-485A9AEB5D11



  Agreement No. 8093 
   

BOS – (City of Umatilla) 36 ADW 

Goals 

 

Please identify what goals your community is prepared to set and work toward this 

year for each area, assuming financial support from the state for implementing 

some or all the strategies marked above, as well as technical assistance and 

collaboration. 

 

Increase shelter capacity 

Our Local Planning Group will add a minimum of 25 emergency shelter beds by 

this date: 6/30/2025. 

Milestones 
Please provide a timeline of quarterly milestones your local planning group 

proposes to mark progress, evaluate strategies, and improve operations to achieve 

the goals identified above, contingent on funding. 

 

**This Regional Community Plan was developed through a Local Planning Group 

process. City of Umatilla is responsible for increased shelter capacity goals of 25 – 

rapid rehousing (RRH) goals are for reference and do not need to be met by the City of 

Umatilla.  

  

DocuSign Envelope ID: F1AC125A-1910-42FF-87F6-485A9AEB5D11



  Agreement No. 8093 
   

BOS – (City of Umatilla) 37 ADW 

 

Month Quarterly Progress Milestones Systems Improvement Actions 
 J
a
n
. 

–
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
2

4
 

 

• RRH Milestone: 10/40 Households 

This includes move in costs 

and/or ongoing assistance 

• Ongoing case management and 

wrap around services for HH’s 

previously housed. 

• Host Quarterly LPG Follow up 

Meeting 

- Review progress on RRH 

and shelter beds 

- Review information 

received from listening 

sessions and make changes 

to services as necessary 

- Data review with LPG to 

assess initial 

subpopulations identifies. 

Will adjust as the group 

deems necessary 

- Review service outcomes 

and identify gaps in 

resources 

• Increase Landlord Engagement 

- Roll out regional 

landlord “lunch and 

learns” and 

incentives options 

- Create 1 page fact sheet for 

landlords 

• Conduct second round of 

listening sessions for our 

identified groups 

• Review updated Measures 

and Outcomes Tracking 

System reports, including 

demographic client 

information. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F1AC125A-1910-42FF-87F6-485A9AEB5D11



  Agreement No. 8093 
   

BOS – (City of Umatilla) 38 ADW 

  
A

p
ri

l-
Ju

n
e
 2

0
2

4
 

• RRH milestone: 16/40 households 

This includes move in costs 

and/or Ongoing assistance 

• Ongoing case management and 

wrap around services for HH’s 

previously housed 

• Conduct third round of 

listening sessions for our 

identified groups 

• Host ongoing regional 

landlord “lunch and learns” 

and create a direct line of 

contact for those landlords 

interested in working with our 

participants 

• Host Quarterly LPG Follow up 

Meeting 

o Document and review 

lessons learned in the 

quarter and review with 

LPG. 

o Adjust goals and 

approach as needed 

  
 J
u
ly

-
 S

e
p
t.

 2
0

2
4
 

• RRH Milestone: 24/40 Households 

This includes move in costs 

and/or ongoing assistance 

• Ongoing case management and 

wrap around services for HH’s 

previously housed 

• Host Quarterly LPG Follow up 

Meeting 

• Conduct ongoing round 

of listening sessions for 

our identified groups 

• Host ongoing regional 

landlord “lunch and 

learns” 

  
 O

c
t.

 –
 D

e
c
. 
2

0
2

4
 

• RRH Milestone: 30/40 Households 

This includes move in costs 

and/or ongoing assistance 

• Host Quarterly LPG Follow up 

Meeting 

Review Data on HH who have 

exited services, where they 

went, and how we could work 

towards filling the gaps in 

services. 

• Conduct ongoing listening 

sessions for our identified 

groups 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F1AC125A-1910-42FF-87F6-485A9AEB5D11



  Agreement No. 8093 
   

BOS – (City of Umatilla) 39 ADW 

   
Ja

n
. –

 M
ar

ch
 2

0
2

5
 

• RRH Milestone: 35/40 Households 

This includes move in costs 

and/or ongoing assistance 

• LPG Group progress review and 

lessons learned session. 
   

  A
p

ri
l-

Ju
n

e 
2

0
2

5
 

• RRH Milestone: 40/40 Households 

This includes move in costs 

and/or ongoing assistance 

 

• Add 25 new shelter beds 

• Document Lessons learned 

• Provide data to LPG regarding 

over all program success, pit 

falls, missing links, etc. 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F1AC125A-1910-42FF-87F6-485A9AEB5D11


	Advisory Board Agenda 113023.pdf
	Advisory Board Project PATH Minutes 102623 DRAFT.pdf
	HB5019 IGA No 8093.pdf



